United Nations
GENERAL

SPECIAL POLITICAL COMMITTEE

s 26th meeting

held on

ASSEmLY Monday, 16 November 1987
FORTY-SECOND SESSION at 3 p.m,
Official Records* New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 26th MEETING
Chairman: Mr. AL-KAWARI (Qatar)

CONTENTS
AGENDA ITEM 78: QUESTIONS RELATING TO INFORMATION (continued)
{a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON INFORMATION (continued)
{b) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

{c} REPORT OF THBE DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE UNITED NATIONS EDUCATIONAL,
SCIENTIFIC AND CULTURAL ORGANIZATION (continued) '

*This recond i weblock ¥ commction, Cervertions. shonkd e seat wmder e sigaararc of & wossber of the dke- Distr. GENERAL
ﬁmmamnm::hqpmuuﬁa:ummmm A/SPC/42/5R.26
neew 27 November 1987
Oorrections will be ivaed afier te ond of the stsaion, in 2 sepatert fascicle for each Commeir. ENGLISH

ORIGINAL: SPANYSH
QI_ETIATA TAIIR (F) oo ,



A/SPC/42/SR. 26
Fnglish
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 3.25 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM 781 QUESTIONS RELATING TO INFORMATION (continued)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON INFORMATION (continued) (A/42/21)

{b) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY~GENERAL (continued) (AR/42/494)

(c) REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR~GENERAL OF THE UNITED NATIONS EDUCATIONAL, SCIENTIFIC
AND CULTURAL ORGANIZATION {continued) (A/42/571)

1. Mr. TLALAJOE {Lesotho) pointed out how importan’ it was for all countries to
co-operata in the establishment of a new world information and communication order
and expressed his support for the efforts of the United Nations to implement the
recommendations made by the Committee on Information in its report (A/42/21).

2. Regarding the plan to restructure the Department of Public Information (DPI)
outlined by the Under-Secretary-General for Public Information, Lesotho was ready
to co-operate to the extent that the restructuring did not affect radio broadcasts
in the various languages spoken in South Africa, which F~d been designed to
disseminate information on apartheid and encourage the people of that region,
Those broadcasts had been initiated by virtue of several General Assembly
resolutions, and the General Assembly had also, in resolution 41/68 of

3 December 1986, expressly defined DPI's mandate. However, the future of those
broadcasts had not been indicated clearly in either the statement of the
Under-Secretary-General or in document ST/SGB/Organization/DP1 of 2 November 1987,
A restructuring plan along the lines of the latter document would be contrary to
the General Assembly resolutions; he therefore hoped that the document had not bheen
given final approval and asked the Committee to take a close look at it.

3. Mr. INSANALLY (Guyana) said that the report of the Committee on Information
contained a comprehensive account of the issues it nad considered but failed to
reflect the serious concerns and the divergence of views of its members regarding
the formulation of a United Nations public information policy.

4q, The developing countries had made '+ abundantly clear that there was an urgent
need to establish a new information order allowing them effective participation on
an equal footing with other nations in political, economic, social and cultural
life, as well as a need to democratize and reinforce multilateralism in
international affairs. Consequently, at the lastest meeting of the Committee on
Information, the Group of 77 had voted in favour of such change. The Western
daveloped countries had either abstained or voted against it, maintaining their
traditional position that the information order could not bhe arbitrarily altered
and seeking, perhaps, Lo perpetuate their control of the information system, That
dichotomy betvween the developed and the developing world had served to deter the
United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO) and all
other United Nations agencies dealing with information from making any progress
towards the creation of a new system. The problem had been compounded by the



A/SPC/42/SR. 26
English
Page 3

(Mr. Insanally, Guyana)

financial crisis, which offered the Committee on Information a pretext for not
carrying out its mandate to co-operate in the establishment of a new world
information and communication order.

5. 1t appeared, moreover, that DPI interpreted its mandate very narrowly, seeing
itself as responsible merely for publicizing the United Nations, without thought
for its larger mandate to contribute to a new world information and communication
order, DPI muat therefore pay due attention to recommendations 1 and 7 in
paragraph 51 of the report of the Committee on Inforration if it was to play its
appointed role in the field of information, in accordance with the principles and
quidelines laid down by the General Assembly. Those principles and guidelines
should be the criteria for the restructuring programme undertaken by DPI to make
maximum use of its resources in the performance of its functions. Furthermore, DPI
should, by means of constant consultation, ensure that its restructuring did not
entail the elimination of programmes considered important by Member States.

6. As to recommendation 35 of the Committee on Information, which dealt,

inter alia, with the Caribbean Unit, his delegation wondered if there was any real
intention of pursuing the plan to strengthen that Unit, which had first been
formulated four years earlier, 1If, as the Under-Secretary-General for Public
Information had herself stated, the objective of the United Nations in the area of
communications should not change year after year, the Caribbean project, which had
the blessing of the General Assembly, should not be further deferred and an effort
should be made to satisfy the needs of the region.

7. He called attention to the information and communication policy on issues like
Apartheid, Namibia and Palestine, and the reluctance of some Member States to
support activities in that field. He urged all relevant United Nations bodies to
make the question a matter of priority because, in helping the cause of the
oppressed, they might at the same time be justifying their own existence.

8. It was important for the Special Political Committee and the General Assembly
to provide direction and pertinent guidelines to the agencies involved in
information and communication., For the time being, Guyana would refrain from
taking a position in the controversy over the policy being followed by DPI,
although it noted that such controversy would harm any work being done in the field
of information, because internal dialogue and agreement were pre-conditions for the
effectiveness of external activities.

9, Measures for assisting a tew developing countries to inprove their information
and communication infrastructures should not be adopted without bearing in mind the

aspirations embodied in General Assembly resolution 34/182, which Guyana once again
reaffirmed.

10, Mr. KA (Senegal) said that communication and information, with their capacity
to influence the reactions and behaviour of modern peoples and socleties, had an
essential role to play in achieving the international goals of peace, development
and solidarity among nations., However, despite the numerous calls for a new and

loas



A/SPC/42/8R, 26
English
Page 4

(Mr. Ka, Senegal)

better-balanced world information order, the communications media continued to
reflect the current distribution of economic power. While differences between the
North and South were increasing, the owners of the communications med.ia continued
to control the flow of information and to determine its content.

11. His delegation, which had taken note of the statement by the
Under~Secretary-General “or Public Tnformation concerning the restructuring of the
Department of Public Information (DPI), hoped that, with the will of all combined,
the Department could be revitalized despite the gravity of the crisis. His
delegation was interested in seeing the develoning countries fairly represented, on
the basis of equitable geographical distribution, among the senior staff of the
Department, and stressed that, in accordance with the principles of the United
Nations Charter, the Department should concern itself especially with questions

relating to international peace and security, decolonization, Palestine, apartheid
and the critical economic situation in Africa.

12. His delegation asked the Department to increase and diversify its co~operation
and exchanges with the News Agenc'es Pool of Non-Aligned Countries and with the
developing countries' national press agencies, and to help make communications and
news dissemination technology available to them.

13. New special contributions to the International Programme for the Development
of Communication must be encouraged in order to accelerate the implementation of
certain projects at the regional, national and international levels. He reiterated
his Government's support for the efforts to be undertaken by the new
Director~-General of the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural
Organization to increase that organization's prestige.

14. The developing countries had remained on the margin of the technological
revolution in the 3iphere of communications, and he was confident that the countries
which possessed those technologies would understand that the adoption of concrete
measures of assistance and training in that field would benefit both the developed
and the developing countries. Freedom of information formed part of the common
heritage of mankind, and must be achieved within the framework oi a new approach
which would guarantee access to communication for all,

15, Mr. NAHES (Brazil) said that his delegation was concerned that the results
achieved at the forty-first session of the General Assembly had not been maintained
in the 1987 substantive session of the Committee on Information. However, the
recomnendations contained in the Committee's report should open up that
possibility, since they were basically the same as those contained in General
Assembly resolution 41/68 A.

16. The possibility of consensus must be viewed from a cost/benefit perspective,
The Group of 77 must not relinquish some basic principles which had always guided
it, such as the search for a new world information and communication order) the
preservation of the Committee's mandate; the impartial, wide and diversified
dissemination of news, including political news; the freedom and responsibility of

oy



A/SPC/42/SR. 26
English
Page 5

(Mr. Nahes, Brazil)

seeking and imparting information; the Jdefence of pluralism of information sources;
the State's restricted participation; access by Jleveioping countries to information
technology and the legitimate right of those conntries to protect their information
industries. The search for a new world information and communication order still
formed the conceptual framawork for examining and deciding upon concrete proposals
and activities aimed at narrowing the gap between developed and developi.g
countries in that field.

17. Since 20 August 1987, the Department of Fublic Information had been selecting
news and sending it to the Information Centre in Rio de Janeiro, where it was
translated into Portuguese. The Brazilian Radio Broadcasting Network (Radiobras)
was broadcasting it daily, free of charge, to 60 million listeners. The material
was also provided to the Brazilian News Enterprise and to 23 newspapers in cities
with a population of under one million. His delegation would like to see that
experience mentioned in the next report on the subject.

18. Despite the achievements of the Rio de Janeiro Information Centre and the
Latin American/Iberian Unit of the United Nations Radio Service, the potential for
co-operation in that field had bean under-explored. His dalegation believed that
co-operation with the United Nations could be further enhanced by the appointment
of a Portuguese-speaking producer, which could benefit not only Brazil hut also

160 million people in the seven Portuguese-speaking countries of the world. His
delegation wished to hear from the Under-Secretary~General on that issue, taking
into account the contents of page 35 of the plan to revitalize DPI and paragraph 13
of her opening statement before the Special Political Committee.

19. Concerning the restructuring of DPI, his delegation shared some of the
concerns expressed by the representative of Mexico. Nevertheless, it basically
agreed with some of the recommendations contained in paragraphs 24 to 30 of
document A/42/16 (Part II).

20. Mr. MOHAMED (Trinidad and Tobago) said that action at the international level
must not only take into account but should also interact with the domestic
situation in each country. The developing countries were goir ¥ through & period of
transition and reconstruction; their political, social and economic institutions
were in the process of continuous change and were groping towards their cultural
identity. In short, developing countries were experiencing the stresses and
strains of adjustment to new social and economic reaiitiea. Owing to the crucial
role of information in the development process, it was essential to structure the
new world order and to develop the appropriate mechanisms towards that end.

21. The world was seen through the prism of Western valuer, since the developing
countries were consumers of information produced by the devnloped countries of the
West. There was a need to redress that imbalance, and DPI had an important role to
play in that regard. The co-operation between DPI, the Eco-Pool and the News
Agencies Pool of Non-Aligned Countries should be strengthened. Training programmes
for young journalists and broadcasters should be accelerated, and the information
capacity of the developing countries should be strengthened. In addition,



A/SPC/42/8R, 26
English
Page 6

(Mc. Mohamed, Trinidad and Tobage)

international resources should be mobilized to strengthen the technical and
financial hase of the developing countries' information and communication systems.

22, Owing to the financial constraints facing the United Nations, in particular
tue drastic reductions in the budget of DPI, it was obvious that any reorganization
or regtructuring could affect the functions of the Department. In his delegation's
view, the restructuring should be carried out with the active collaboration of the
developing countries. To that end, the views of the devaloping countries, as
expressed in the Committee on Information and the Special Political Committee,
should be duly considered; the representation of Member States in DPI should he
geographically balanced; in the review of the proposed structure of DPI, the views
expressed by the Committee for Programme and Co-ordination should recelve due
attention; the information cenitres should be retained in order to mobilize world
public opinion; the programmes mandated by General Assembly resolutions should be
implementeds and the resources of non-governmental organizations should be utilized
to aegsist in the dissamination of information.

23, Mr, EL-KHATIB (Morocco) sald that the efforts of the United Nations in recent
years to promote the establishment of a new world information and communication
order had demonstrated the international community's awareneass of the importance of
the problems in that sphere. The concentration of communications technolony and
media in the hands of a small numbzsr of information networks jeopardized the
establishment of a balanced flow of information exchange betwaen the developed
countries and the developing countries.

24, The process of estaplishing the new world information and communication order
was proceeding irreversibly, although there were still some questions regarding its
nature and legal status. The developed countries, which possessed technology and
knowledge, should share them with the developing countries. The latter should, in
turn, assume responsibility for training and for research costs. That was the only
way to bring about interdependence between the North and the South., It should bhe
noted that the news exchanyes sponsored by the non-aliyned countries tended, by
establishing South~South co-oparation, to reduce the imbalance that characterized
information distribution and communication models thereby making it possible to
pregent a more realistic image of the third world from a new point of view.

25. DPI should undertake efforts in the area of education in order to imbue future
generations with the ideals of the United Nations, especially regarding
development, decolonization, disarmamesnt and the elimination of racism and
apartheid. Future generations would thus be able properly to appreciate
interdependence and respect for the values of others. DPI should play a greater
role in the World Disarmament Camgaign by effectively raising States' awareness of
the need to curh thLe arms race.

26, UNESCO's International Programme for the Development of Communication should
aid in the estahlishment of national information systems in the developing
countries, which in his delegation's view, would represent a valuable contribution
to those countries' efforts to establish their own information structures. The

’
faee



A/SPC/42/8R. 26
English
Page 7

{Mr. El-Khatih, Morocco)

policy of intellect.al independence of Development Forum should also be maintained,
g0 that it could continue to publish accurate and objective information on th

numerous difficulties confronting the third world countries in their struggle for
development.

27, Under the pretext ¢! protectin¢g their populations from any unkealthy
influences, numerous Govu:nments exercised control over information. His
drlegation cunsidered thay the immense possihilities which communication offered
made it a powerful tool fo. promoting the democratization of society. Morocco had
a sizeable written press wh..h encompassed all shades of political opinion in the
countty, and the Moroccan Go\ - rnment espoused a tolerant system which guaranteed
all citizens freedom of opini. \ and expression under the Constitution. Only when a
consensus had been reached wit:. the participation of all could inforination play its
true role ot bringing peoples c'iser together and helping them to live in peace,
with mutual respect and without ihe desirz to dominate in any way nor to impose any
tdenlugy. %

28, Mr., KUNSTADTER (United state:kvf America), speaking in exercise of the right
of reply, said that his delegation nad listened with great puzzlement to the
statement the representative of Viet Nam had made at the Committee's 25th meeting,
using as his own a vocabulary clearly coined by others and referring, in
particular, to Radio Free Europe, Radio Liberty and Radio Mart{., It was surpri._ing
to learn that the broadcasts of the latter were powerful enough to reach Viet Nam.
The representative of Viet Nam had als: spoken of imperialiat propaganda centres,
perhaps in reference to hia own country's ambitions in South-East Asia, ambitions

which, since 1979, had been condemned by a growing majority of delegations to the
General Assembly.

29, The Committee's patience had also bevn tried by the preposterous utterances of
the representative of a régime which claimed to be in control of Kabui and other
Afghan cities, when in fact that régime was receiving considerable foreign military
and logistic aid. The remarks in question would not have merited a reply had they
not obscured the real and tragic situation in Afghanistan, He rccalled that in
1947 the draft resolution on Afghanistan had received 123 votes in fa.our.

30, Mr. JAWSHAN (Afghanistan), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said
that it was not surprising that his statement at the Committee's 25th meeting had
not been to the liking of the United States represcntative, although that statement
has disclosed only some of the subversive and hostile activities conducted by the
CIA against the Democratic Republic of Afghanistan since the April revolution, Two
thousand schools, 131 hospitals, 350 bridges, 224 mosques and noly places and 258
production units had teen destroyed hy agents of the CIA, resulting in the killing
of many innocent civilians, including women, children and the elderly. The main
aim of the United States in carrying out such acts was to undermine Afghanistan's
national reconciliation policy, which was intended to restore peace and put an end
to bloodshed.



A/SPC/42/8R. 26
English
Page 8

(Mr, Jawshan, Afghanistan)

31, The United States, through its gigantic propaganda machine, tried to justify
its subversive activities under the pretext of helping those who could not help

themselves. But there was no justification for the killing, ro matter what name
the United States gave to it.

32, Mr. TRUONG TREU DUONG (Viet Nam), speaking in exercise of the right of reply,
said that his delegation's puzzlement was compounded by the fact that the
representative of the United States had found it necessary to exercise his right of
reply with regard to Viet Nam's statement at the Committee's 25th meeting, in which
the United States had not been mentioned by name. The United Sta.28 representative
had asked if Radio Mart{ was powerful enough to reach Viet Nam. He, in turn,
ventured to ask whether in the past Viet Nam h. 4 been powerful enough to fight the
United States, He recalled that the United States had launched a war against Viet
Nam in which i1t had utilized every kind of weapon, except nuclear weapons,

33, His delegation had already refuted at length the United States remarks
regarding Viet Nam's ambitions in South-East Asia, and would therefore not do so
atainy nevertheless, his delegation invited the United States representative to
examine the relevant documents which were available in the Vietnamese Mission.

The meeting rose at 4.35 p.m.




